
1 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
COUNTY OF NIAGARA   TOWN OF PORTER 
 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Town of Porter Zoning Board of Appeals 
was held on Thursday, April 16, 2015 at 7:30 PM, in the Town 
Offices, 3265 Creek Road, Youngstown, NY  14174 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman Duffy Johnston, Member Terry Duffy, Member 

Irene Myers, Member Bryan Meigs, Member Jackie 
Robinson, Assessor, Susan Driscoll, Roy Rogers, 
Building Inspector and  Attorney Michael Dowd. 

 
 
Chairman Johnston called the meeting to order at 7:30 pm.  
 
Chairman Johnston asked if there were any additions or deletions to 
the March 19, 2015 minutes.  Irene Myers made a motion to accept 
the minutes and was seconded by Terry Duffy.  All in Favor.   Motion 
Carried.     
 
Chairman Johnston stated regarding the Appeal of William Dean we 
have an interesting topic tonight.   As for the agenda, there is nothing 
that I can really say.  I had to postpone Mr. Dean until next month’s 
meeting.  A public notice needs to go into the paper and a payment of  
the $100 fee.  Chairman Johnston stated that he has talked to Mr. 
Dean and that his lawyer is not here tonight as it would be a waste of 
time and money.   The situation we are in we have never had before.   
We really didn’t realize it until a few days ago.   There has to be a 
public notice in the paper.   Mr. Dean stated that regarding the 
Appeal, he has to be notified in a reasonable time and given a public 
notice.  Mr. Dean stated the longer it takes the better it is.  If you rush, 
you make mistakes.   Mr. Dean questioned about being notified.  
Chairman Johnston stated that you are here tonight.  We are in a 
situation that we have never been in before.   Mr. Kyle Andrews, our 
attorney, couldn’t be here tonight.   We are working through this.   Mr. 
Dean stated that Kyle Andrews and Morgan Jones talked yesterday.  
Chairman Johnston stated it is new for everybody.   We have to have 
a guideline.  The next meeting will be the third Thursday of May 
which is May 21, 2015.   



2 

 
Mr. Dean raised another question on a different subject about a 
variance.   He stated that he foiled (Freedom of Information Law) 
regarding a site plan review of the application.   I will discuss with 
Mert Wiepert and Roy Rogers tomorrow.   I also foiled the 
recreational pond which is related to drainage, and what is going into 
the roadway ditches.   My question is “Was there ever a variance 
request approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals for Michael 
McCabe to put a pond within 100 feet of the property line?”   
Chairman Johnston stated I really cannot entertain this.   Mr. Dean 
stated that he foiled the information report from Niagara County Soil 
& Water to applying for a variance for the proposed pond, and it has 
to be at least 100 feet from the property line.   Mr. McCabe’s is 40’ on 
either side of the property line.   Did Mike McCabe ever apply for a 
variance on the property for a distance less than 100 feet from the 
property line?  Chairman Johnston stated that Niagara County Soil & 
Water is a separate issue.   Chairman Johnston asked if anyone 
remembers a variance for Mr. McCabe for a pond.   Chairman 
Johnston stated that to the best of his knowledge, it has never come 
before this Board.   Chairman Johnston stated I cannot act upon that.   
The attorney is out of town.   I will call Kyle Andrews, and I will 
address it.   I will check into this.   Mr. Dean asked again about the 
variance of Mr. McCabe from Roy Rogers regarding the area.  The 
Town of Porter has to allow a variance for a pond to be built 100 feet 
from the property line.   I have a copy of the survey.   (175 feet by 175 
feet.)  The distance required has to be 100 feet.   Mr. McCabe has 
249.35 road frontage (250’ minus 175’ leaves 42.5 feet on either side 
of the pond.)  I have an interest in the drainage.   How the pond is 
constructed, and how it is draining?  I don’t know how to manage it.   I 
cannot go to the Town Board and Planning Board based on the 
information given by Roy.   It is out of compliance with the Zoning 
Board.   Chairman Johnston stated there may be other parameters 
that might come up.   There are issues, and I don’t know at this point 
what might come up in the future.   I cannot say anything.   Mr. Dean 
asked, “Is someone going to answer this question?”   Chairman 
Johnston stated because we have nothing on the docket, I cannot 
answer.   There is nothing on the agenda.  Mr. Dean commented that 
Roy Rogers is not talking and Michael Dowd will not talk today.    
 



3 

Irene Myers stated I have nothing that came across this Board for a 
variance on this point.   She told Mr. Dean that the Town of Porter 
has a website, and you can look at the minutes of other meetings.   
All the information is there for you.   Nothing has been brought to the 
Board for Mr. McCabe on a variance.   Chairman Johnston asked 
each of the Board members if they were aware of any variance to the 
best of their knowledge.   Terry Duffy-nothing; Irene Myers-no; Jackie 
Robinson-no and Chairman Johnston-no.    
 
Attorney Dowd stated that he represents the Town, generally 
speaking, and I try to provide as much information as I can.   In this 
particular instance, I have to recuse myself as I represent Mr. 
McCabe in a completely different matter.   He is a client.    
 
Mr. Rogers stated that he went through Niagara County Soil & Water, 
and I have to look at the file.   It is totally public record.   Chairman 
Johnston asked Mr. Dean to call Roy Rogers tomorrow (4/17).   
 
Chairman Johnston again stated this is totally new to all of us, 
including the Building Inspector and the lawyer.  I would never hide 
anything from you.   Attorney Dowd stated this is the first time in 15 
years that I have had to be recused.    
 
Sheila Mooney, 2407 Lake Road stated she would like to address 
Roy Rogers.   I happened to drive by when the first building came on.   
It was for toy tractors, collections, etc.,  and I went to Roy Rogers and 
asked what is going on here.  It is an enormous building for toy 
tractors.   My son said not to get involved.  I have open land from me 
that could be seriously affected by what is going on.   I see one 
building, two, three and four; and I question why there is not a cease 
and desist.   Chairman Johnston stated that there is a cease and 
desist.   As a neighbor, he is not in compliance.   Mrs. Mooney stated 
that the Town Board, Planning Board and Zoning Board that none of 
these groups work together.   No one seems to know what is going 
on.  Chairman Johnston stated that he has talked to Mr. Weipert five 
times this week.   Mrs. Mooney stated that has been going on for 
years.   I just tried to make a point.   Chairman Johnston stated this is 
a certain situation, we are in and we are trying to make it right for 
everyone.    
 



4 

Irene Myers made a suggestion that Mrs. Mooney go to the next 
Town Board, and you ask those questions you are asking here 
tonight.  I would like to tell you there is a sequence of events that go 
on.   Mr. Rogers makes a decision within the Town laws.  Irene Myers 
stated that nothing has come to our Board for Mr. McCabe for a 
variance.  We are not trying to push you out the door.   You should 
start with the Town Board and ask them.   There are procedures and 
a sequence of events.   
 
Chairman Johnston asked for a motion to close the public part of the 
hearing and was seconded by Jackie Robinson.   Roll Call vote.  
Terry Duffy-yes; Brian Meigs-yes; Irene Myers-yes; Jackie Robinson-
yes and Chairman Johnston-yes.   All in Favor to close the public part 
of the hearing. 
         
A Motion was made by Irene Myers and seconded by Jackie 
Robinson to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at 

8:04 p.m.  The next regular meeting will be held on Thursday, May 
21, 2015. 
 
The Board went into Executive Session to discuss legal 
matters.   No action was taken. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy Smithson, Secretary 
Town of Porter Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 

 

 

 


